
From: Rush, Peter
To: "Singer, Paul"
Cc:
Subject: RE: Ministerial arrangements [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 12 March 2021 10:25:38 AM
Attachments: image003.png

OFFICIAL
Thanks Paul

From: Singer, Paul 
Sent: Friday, 12 March 2021 10:00 AM
To: Rush, Peter 
Cc:
Subject: RE: Ministerial arrangements [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Good morning Peter,
This will be fine, happy to resolve the administrative arrangements for both Ministers
Morton and Landry in the same correspondence.
With best wishes,
Paul

Paul Singer MVO | Official Secretary to the Governor-General
Office of the Official Secretary to the Governor-General 
Government House, Canberra ACT 2600
T: +61 2 6283 3508 | M: 
E: paul.singer@gg.gov.au | W: www.gg.gov.au |  
Australian Honours: Nominate a worthy Australian.
The Office acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia and
their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them
and their cultures and to their elders both past and present.

From: Rush, Peter [mailto:Peter.Rush@pmc.gov.au] 
Sent: Thursday, 11 March 2021 4:21 PM
To: Singer, Paul <Paul.Singer@gg.gov.au>
Cc: mc.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Ministerial arrangements [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Paul: a related matter has arisen today. The PM has asked Assistant Minister Morton to have
oversight of the Global Talents Taskforce, located in the Department of Home Affairs. This would
require Mr Morton being sworn to administer the Dept of Home Affairs. If you agree, we can aim
to incorporate this change of arrangements in the same correspondence between PM and GG as
that for Assistant Minister Landry.
Cheers - Rush

From: Rush, Peter 
Sent: Thursday, 11 March 2021 11:37 AM
To: 'Singer, Paul' <Paul.Singer@gg.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Ministerial arrangements [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Many thanks Paul
Cheers - Rush

From: Singer, Paul <Paul.Singer@gg.gov.au> 
Sent: Thursday, 11 March 2021 11:31 AM
To: Rush, Peter <Peter.Rush@pmc.gov.au>
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Subject: Ministerial arrangements [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Good morning Peter,
Thanks for your time yesterday, good to catch-up.
In response to your question on Assistant Minister Landry, the Governor-General would
be happy to consider the proposed administrative arrangements based on a
recommendation by the Prime Minister, without requiring a ‘ceremony’.
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
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From:
To:
Cc: Rush, Peter;  Reid, John
Subject: RE: Drafts for tomorrow [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Monday, 29 March 2021 10:29:42 PM
Attachments: Letter to the Governor-General.docx

Instrument of Revocation.docx
Speaking Notes for the Prime Minister - Swearing in Ceremony 30 March 2021.docx
The Hon Ben Morton - Instrument of Appointment.docx
The Hon Michelle Landry - Instrument of Appointment.docx
image001.png

Importance: High

OFFICIAL
Hi
Apologies, the order of Ministers in the previous versions was incorrect – and instruments for Mr
Morton and Ms Landry have been amended – these versions are the latest and will (hopefully) be
the finals.
Thanks and please get in touch if you have any questions.

From: 
Sent: Monday, 29 March 2021 8:11 PM
To: 
Cc: Rush, Peter Reid, John 
Subject: Drafts for tomorrow [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Importance: High

OFFICIAL
Hi
For your information, I’ve attached the draft letter from the Prime Minister to the Governor-
General, the draft instrument of revocation and speaking notes for the Prime Minister, and draft
appointment instruments for your reference.
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.
Warm regards

 Senior Adviser
Government Division | Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
e. pmc.gov.au | w. www.pmc.gov.au | p. 
One National Circuit Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600
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Reference: MS21-000495 
 
 
 
 
 
His Excellency General the Honourable David Hurley AC DSC (Retd) 
Governor-General of the Commonwealth of Australia  
Government House 
CANBERRA  ACT  2600  
 
 
Your Excellency 
 
I write to recommend changes to the Ministry and to provide the documents necessary to 
implement the changes, for your consideration. 
 
In order to facilitate the proposed appointments, I first recommend you revoke the current 
appointments of Ministers and Assistant Ministers who will be recommended for  
re-appointment to the Ministry. The list of proposed revocations is at Attachment A. 

 
The list of recommended ministerial appointments is at Attachment B. Instruments to give 
effect to these recommendations are attached for your signature. 
 
My recommendations include instruments to appoint the Hon Ben Morton MP and the Hon 
Michelle Landry MP so that they can administer an additional department each. As these 
changes are of an administrative nature only, Mr Morton and Ms Landry will not be 
participating in the swearing-in ceremony. 
 
I understand you have agreed to schedule the swearing-in ceremony by video link from 
Government House at 2:00pm on Tuesday 30 March 2021, and thank you and your staff for 
your ongoing assistance. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SCOTT MORRISON 
 
 



 
Attachment A 

List of ministerial revocations 
• Senator the Hon Michaelia Cash as Minister for Employment, Skills, Small and 

Family Business 
• The Hon Peter Dutton MP as Minister for Home Affairs 
• Senator the Hon Anne Ruston as Minister for Families and Social Services 
• The Hon Karen Andrews MP as Minister for Industry, Science and Technology 
• The Hon Christian Porter MP as Attorney-General and as Minister for Industrial 

Relations 
• The Hon Stuart Robert MP as Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme 

and Minister for Government Services 
• Senator the Hon Linda Reynolds CSC as Minister for Defence 
• The Hon Melissa Price MP as Minister for Defence Industry 
• Senator the Hon Jane Hume as Minister for Superannuation, Financial Services and 

the Digital Economy 
• Senator the Hon Amanda Stoker as Parliamentary Secretary to the Attorney-General 

  



 
Attachment B 

List of ministerial appointments 
• Senator the Hon Michaelia Cash as Attorney-General and as Minister for Industrial 

Relations  
• The Hon Peter Dutton MP as Minister for Defence  
• Senator the Hon Anne Ruston as Minister for Families and Social Services and as 

Minister for Women’s Safety  
• The Hon Karen Andrews MP as Minister for Home Affairs  
• The Hon Christian Porter MP as Minister for Industry, Science and Technology 
• The Hon Stuart Robert MP as Minister for Employment, Workforce, Skills, Small and 

Family Business  
• Senator the Hon Linda Reynolds CSC as Minister for Government Services and as 

Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme 
• The Hon Melissa Price MP as Minister for Defence Industry 
• Senator the Hon Jane Hume as Minister for Superannuation, Financial Services and 

the Digital Economy, and as Minister for Women’s Economic Security  
• Senator the Hon Amanda Stoker as Parliamentary Secretary to the Attorney-General, 

as Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister for Industrial Relations, and as 
Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister for Women  

• The Hon Ben Morton MP to administer the Department of Home Affairs 
• The Hon Michelle Landry MP to administer the Department of the Prime Minister 

and Cabinet 



 
 

 
 

REVOCATION OF APPOINTMENTS OF MINISTERS OF STATE  
 

 
___________________ 

 
 
 
I, DAVID JOHN HURLEY, Governor-General of the Commonwealth of Australia, 
pursuant to section 64 of the Constitution, hereby revoke the appointments of:    
 

i. SENATOR THE HONOURABLE MICHAELIA CLARE CASH as 
MINISTER FOR EMPLOYMENT, SKILLS, SMALL AND FAMILY 
BUSINESS 

ii. THE HONOURABLE PETER CRAIG DUTTON as MINISTER FOR 
HOME AFFAIRS 

iii. SENATOR THE HONOURABLE ANNE SOWERBY RUSTON as 
MINISTER FOR FAMILIES AND SOCIAL SERVICES 

iv. THE HONOURABLE KAREN LESLEY ANDREWS as MINISTER FOR 
INDUSTRY, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 

v. THE HONOURABLE CHARLES CHRISTIAN PORTER as  
ATTORNEY-GENERAL and MINISTER FOR INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

vi. THE HONOURABLE STUART ROWLAND ROBERT as MINISTER 
FOR THE NATIONAL DISABILITY INSURANCE SCHEME and 
MINISTER FOR GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

vii. SENATOR THE HONOURABLE LINDA KAREN REYNOLDS as 
MINISTER FOR DEFENCE 

viii. THE HONOURABLE MELISSA LEE PRICE as MINISTER FOR 
DEFENCE INDUSTRY  

ix. SENATOR THE HONOURABLE EDWINA JANE HUME as MINISTER 
FOR SUPERANNUATION, FINANCIAL SERVICES, AND THE 
DIGITAL ECONOMY 



x. SENATOR THE HONOURABLE AMANDA JANE STOKER as 
PARLIAMENTARY SECRETARY TO THE ATTORNEY-GENERAL 

 
Given under my hand on 30 March 2021 
 

 
 
 
 

Governor-General 
By His Excellency's Command 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prime Minister 



Notes for the Prime Minister 
Swearing-in 
30 March 2021 
 

[The Official Secretary will announce the arrival of the 
Governor-General and Mrs Hurley, and you.  
You will enter the drawing room and take your seat at 
the ceremonial table, opposite the Governor-General. 
The Official Secretary will invite you to introduce your 
recommended appointees.] 

 
Your Excellency, 
  
I am pleased to present new appointments to the 
Ministry: 
 
• Senator the Honourable Michaelia Cash as 

Attorney-General and Minister for Industrial 
Relations 
[The appointee will be visible on the large video screen, 
to your left. The GG will invite them to read their oath 
of office, then sign it. The GG will congratulate the 
appointee before a photo is taken.] 
 

• The Honourable Peter Dutton MP as Minister for 
Defence 
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
 



• Senator the Honourable Anne Ruston as 
Minister for Families and Social Services and 
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
 

• The Honourable Karen Andrews MP as Minister 
for Home Affairs 
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
 

• The Honourable Christian Porter MP as Minister 
for Industry, Science and Technology 
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

 
• The Honourable Stuart Robert MP as Minister for 

Employment, Workforce, Skills, Small and Family 
Business 
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
 



• Senator the Honourable Linda Reynolds as 
Minister for Government Services and Minister for 
the National Disability Insurance Scheme 
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

 
 
• The Honourable Melissa Price MP as Minister for 

Defence Industry 
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

 
 
• Senator the Honourable Jane Hume as Minister 

for Superannuation, Financial Services and the 
Digital Economy and Minister for Women’s 
Economic Security 
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

  



 
• Senator the Honourable Amanda Stoker as 

Parliamentary Secretary to the Attorney-General, 
Parliamentary Secretary to the Minister for 
Industrial Relations and Parliamentary Secretary to 
the Minister for Women to be known as  
Assistant Minister to the Attorney-General, 
Assistant Minister for Industrial Relations and 
Assistant Minister for Women.  
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

 
 
Your Excellency, that concludes the presentation of the 
Ministry. 
 

[The Governor-General or Official Secretary will close 
the ceremony.] 
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APPOINTMENT OF PARLIAMENTARY SECRETARY 
 

___________________ 
 
I, DAVID JOHN HURLEY, Governor-General of the Commonwealth of 
Australia, pursuant to section 64 of the Constitution, hereby appoint 
MICHELLE LEANNE LANDRY, a member of the Federal Executive 
Council, to administer THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PRIME MINISTER 
AND CABINET. 
 

 
Signed and sealed with the 
Great Seal of Australia on  
30 March 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
Governor-General 

 
 
By His Excellency's Command 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prime Minister 
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Date: Friday 2 July 2021 
Time: 11:10am for an 11:30am start. The ceremony will conclude at approximately 
12:00pm 
Dress: Lounge suit/day dress 
  
Link to rehearsal AND ceremony:  
Meeting link: 
https://officeofthegovernorgeneral.my.webex.com/officeofthegovernorgeneral.my/j.php?
MTID=m54dabf5dafe48e10ed0d1819802eb21c   
Meeting number: 165 759 2874 
Password: GH2721 (442721 from phones and video systems) 
  
Please find attached instructions and advice for accessing and using the Webex 
videoconferencing system. 

  
All participants will be held in a waiting room before being admitted to the main 
conference/official ceremony. The waiting room will open from 11:00am. Once the event 
starts at 11:30am, all appointees should have their camera on and microphone muted until 
they hear their name from the Governor-General, i.e. “Mr Littleproud, I invite you to…”..  
  
Appointees may attend the ceremony from any suitable and convenient location which may 
include their APH office, electorate office or personal residence.  Appointees may wish to 
give consideration to the lighting, noise and staging of their location, particularly if they will 
not be in an official office environment. 
  
The Governor-General, Prime Minister and Deputy Prime Minister will attend the ceremony 
in-person. All ministerial appointees will attend virtually due to COVID-19 restrictions. 
  
  
2. Instructions for printing, reading and signing the Oath 
Please note that a copy of the Oath and the order in which appointees will be sworn will 
be emailed to you separately in advance of the ceremony. 
  
As you are aware, you will be required to swear the Oath of Office. Please follow the 
instructions below.  
  

1. The Oath must be printed on plain white/cream A4 paper prior to the ceremony and 
remain unsigned. 

2. The appointee must have the printed Oath, their Bible or Holy Book and a pen, in 
front of them during the ceremony, preferably all in view of the camera, if possible. 
Camera angles will be tested at the technical rehearsal. 

3. At the ceremony, the Prime Minister will call the appointee’s name, at which point 
the appointee will be visible on screen at Government House.  

4. The Governor-General will then invite the appointee to swear the Oath, at which 
point the appointee should unmute their microphone.  

5. When called, the appointee must read the entire Oath aloud from the first sentence 
(“I, [name]…”) and including the last sentence (“So help me God!”). 

6. The appointee must then sign the Oath on the first dotted line and hold it up to the 
camera. 

7. The Governor-General will then congratulate the appointee, after which the appointee 
should mute their microphone.  
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Barton, ACT, 2600 
  
And finally, should you have any questions or require further assistance, please contact me 
on the details below or at  Alternatively, please contact  
on .  
  
Kind regards, 

 
  
  

 | Adviser 
Government Section | Government Division  
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet 
p.  e.  w. www.pmc.gov.au    
One National Circuit Barton ACT 2600 | PO Box 6500 CANBERRA ACT 2600 
 
<image016.png> 
 
<image017.png> 
 
<image018.png> 
   
<image019.png> 
 
<image020.png> 
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IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, contains information  
that is confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or  
other privilege. If you are not the intended recipient of this message, you  
must not review, copy, disseminate or disclose its contents to any other  
party or take action in reliance of any material contained within it. If you  
have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by  
return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the  
message from your computer system.  
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, may contain information that is 
deemed 
confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or other privilege. If 
you 
are not the intended recipient of this message, you must not review, copy, disseminate 
or 
disclose its contents to any other party or take action in reliance of any material 
contained within. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender
immediately by return email informing them of the mistake and delete all copies of the
message from your computer system. 
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5. Actions required after the ceremony  
 
 
1. Logistics of the virtual swearing-in ceremony 

 
Date: Friday 2 July 2021 
Time: 11:10am for an 11:30am start. The ceremony will conclude at approximately 12:00pm 
Dress: Lounge suit/day dress 
 
Link to rehearsal AND ceremony:  
Meeting link: 
https://officeofthegovernorgeneral.my.webex.com/officeofthegovernorgeneral.my/j.php?MTID=m54dab
f5dafe48e10ed0d1819802eb21c   
Meeting number: 165 759 2874 
Password: GH2721 (442721 from phones and video systems) 
 
Please find attached instructions and advice for accessing and using the Webex videoconferencing 
system. 

 
All participants will be held in a waiting room before being admitted to the main conference/official 
ceremony. The waiting room will open from 11:00am. Once the event starts at 11:30am, all appointees 
should have their camera on and microphone muted until they hear their name from the Governor-General, 
i.e. “Mr Littleproud, I invite you to…”..  
 
Appointees may attend the ceremony from any suitable and convenient location which may include their 
APH office, electorate office or personal residence.  Appointees may wish to give consideration to the 
lighting, noise and staging of their location, particularly if they will not be in an official office environment.
 
The Governor-General, Prime Minister and Deputy Prime Minister will attend the ceremony in-person. All 
ministerial appointees will attend virtually due to COVID-19 restrictions. 
 
 
2. Instructions for printing, reading and signing the Oath 
Please note that a copy of the Oath and the order in which appointees will be sworn will be emailed to 
you separately in advance of the ceremony. 
 
As you are aware, you will be required to swear the Oath of Office. Please follow the instructions below.  
 

1. The Oath must be printed on plain white/cream A4 paper prior to the ceremony and remain 
unsigned. 

2. The appointee must have the printed Oath, their Bible or Holy Book and a pen, in front of them 
during the ceremony, preferably all in view of the camera, if possible. Camera angles will be tested 
at the technical rehearsal. 

3. At the ceremony, the Prime Minister will call the appointee’s name, at which point the appointee 
will be visible on screen at Government House.  

4. The Governor-General will then invite the appointee to swear the Oath, at which point the appointee 
should unmute their microphone.  

5. When called, the appointee must read the entire Oath aloud from the first sentence (“I, [name]…”) 
and including the last sentence (“So help me God!”). 

6. The appointee must then sign the Oath on the first dotted line and hold it up to the camera. 
7. The Governor-General will then congratulate the appointee, after which the appointee should mute 

their microphone.  
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3. Details for a pre-ceremony technical rehearsal  
 
Date: Friday 2 July 2021 
Time: 9:30am (AEDT) 
Please use the webex link provided above to join the technical rehearsal.  
 
All appointees or a representative are strongly encouraged to join this technical rehearsal. Please join the 
rehearsal on the device that the appointee will be using for the actual ceremony to ensure any issues can be 
resolved before the ceremony.  
 
 
4. Point of contact for technical support 
 

 

 
  |  Senior Program and Events Adviser 

Office of the Official Secretary to the Governor-General  
Government House, Canberra ACT 2600 
T: +   |  M: +  

E:   |  W: www.gg.gov.au  |     
   
Australian Honours: Nominate a worthy Australian.  
 
The Office acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia 
and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects 
to them and their cultures and to their elders both past and present. 
 

 
 

 will be supporting the test run at 9:30am on Friday morning and is available to answer any 
technical questions.  If you have not already done so, please provide a relevant mobile phone number by 
return email to me (either for the Minister themselves or a staffer that will be with them) for  to use 
in the unlikely event of any technical difficulties. 
 
 
5. Actions after the ceremony 
 
Following the ceremony, the signed Oath must be couriered to the Department of the Prime Minister 
and Cabinet to arrange the Governor-General’s signature.  
 
It is important the Oath is kept as pristine as possible. Please package the signed Oath in a protective sleeve,
preferably with cardboard and a “do not bend” instruction on the envelope. We would be grateful if the Oath 
could be couriered ASAP. 
 
Please address the package as follows: 

 
Attention:  
Government Division 
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet  
1 National Circuit 
Barton, ACT, 2600 

 
And finally, should you have any questions or require further assistance, please contact me on the details 
below or at . Alternatively, please contact   
 

s 22(1)(a)(ii)

s 22(1)(a)(ii) s 22(1)(a)(ii)
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

E   |  W: www.gg.gov.au  |     
   
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
below or at . Alternatively, please contact .  
 
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
Subject: Copies of Instruments and Oaths [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Thursday, 1 July 2021 3:49:25 PM
Attachments: Instruments - 2 July 2021.zip

Oaths - 2 July 2021.zip
image001.png
image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image005.png

OFFICIAL
Hi 
 
Many thanks for this advice. List of PM&C attendees will follow shortly.
 
For your information, please find attached copies of the Oaths and Instruments. The final set is
with the PM at the moment, and we always bring spare copies with us as well, so no action
required for these.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, 1 July 2021 3:33 PM
To: 
Subject: FW: Order of swearing-in [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 
FYI – below.
 

 

From:  

Document 7
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Sent: Thursday, 1 July 2021 2:36 PM
To: 
Subject: RE: Order of swearing-in [SEC=OFFICIAL]
 

OFFICIAL
Hi 

Confirming the following staff will be in attendance from the Prime Minister’s office at tomorrow’s
ceremony:

Thanks again for your assistance.

Kind regards,

 | Advancer
Office of the Prime Minister, the Hon Scott Morrison MP
MG 8, Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600
p.  | m. 
e. 
 
 
 
 
IMPORTANT: This message, and any attachments to it, may contain information 
that is deemed
confidential and may also be the subject of legal professional or other 
privilege. If you
are not the intended recipient of this message, you must not review, copy, 
disseminate or
disclose its contents to any other party or take action in reliance of any 
material 
contained within. If you have received this message in error, please notify 
the sender
immediately by return email informing them of the mistake and delete all 
copies of the 
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
MICHELLE LEANNE LANDRY a member of the Federal Executive 
Council, to administer THE DEPARTMENT OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS AND 
TRADE and THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PRIME MINISTER AND 
CABINET and THE DEPARTMENT OF SOCIAL SERVICES. 
 
Pursuant to section 65 of the Constitution, I direct MICHELLE LEANNE 
LANDRY to hold the offices of PARLIAMENTARY SECRETARY TO THE 
MINISTER FOR TRADE, TOURISM AND INVESTMENT and 
PARLIAMENTARY SECRETARY TO THE MINISTER FOR FAMILIES 
AND SOCIAL SERVICES. 

 
Signed and sealed with the 
Great Seal of Australia on  
2 July 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
Governor-General 

 
 
By His Excellency's Command 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prime Minister 



 

 
 

Oath of Office 
 

________________ 
 
 
I, MICHELLE LEANNE LANDRY do swear that I will well and truly 
serve the people of Australia in the offices of PARLIAMENTARY 
SECRETARY TO THE MINISTER FOR TRADE, TOURISM AND 
INVESTMENT and PARLIAMENTARY SECRETARY TO THE 
MINISTER FOR FAMILIES AND SOCIAL SERVICES and that I will be 
faithful and bear true allegiance to Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth the 
Second, Queen of Australia. 
 

So help me God! 

 

 

 

 

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

 

 
 
 
Sworn and subscribed before me,  
the Governor-General of the  
Commonwealth of Australia,  
at Canberra, on 2 July 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

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
T:   |  M: +  

E:   |  W: www.gg.gov.au  |     
   
Australian Honours: Nominate a worthy Australian.  
 
The Office acknowledges the traditional owners of country throughout Australia and their continuing 
connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures and to their 
elders both past and present. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
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
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Friday, 2 July 2021 
2:00pm start 

 
Order in which ministerial appointees will be sworn-in 

 

1. The Hon David Littleproud MP 

2. Senator the Hon Bridget McKenzie 

3. The Hon Andrew Gee MP  

4. The Hon Keith Pitt MP  

5. The Hon Dr David Gillespie MP 

6. The Hon Michelle Landry MP 

7. The Hon Kevin Hogan MP 

 



Contacts for appointees – 2 July 2021 

 

Minister/Assistant 
Minister 

Contact Email  Confirmation Call 

s 22(1)(a)(ii)







 
1. Logistics of the virtual swearing-in ceremony

 
Date: Friday 2 July 2021
Time: 1:40 pm for a 2:00pm start. The ceremony will conclude at approximately 2:30pm.
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
ceremony. The waiting room will open from 11:00am. Once the event starts at 11:30am, all
appointees should have their camera on and microphone muted until they hear their name from the
Governor-General, i.e. “Mr Littleproud, I invite you to…”. The order in which appointees will be
sworn in is attached for your reference during the ceremony.
 
Appointees may attend the ceremony from any suitable and convenient location which may include
their APH office, electorate office or personal residence.  Appointees may wish to give consideration
to the lighting, noise and staging of their location, particularly if they will not be in an official office
environment.
 
The Governor-General, Prime Minister and Deputy Prime Minister will attend the ceremony in-
person. All ministerial appointees will attend virtually due to COVID-19 restrictions.
 
 
2. Instructions for printing, reading and signing the Oath
 
As you are aware, you will be required to swear the Oath of Office (attached). Please follow the
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
during the ceremony, preferably all in view of the camera, if possible. Camera angles will be
tested at the technical rehearsal.

3. At the ceremony, the Prime Minister will call the appointee’s name, at which point the
appointee will be visible on screen at Government House.

4. The Governor-General will then invite the appointee to swear the Oath, at which point the
appointee should unmute their microphone.

5. When called, the appointee must read the entire Oath aloud from the first sentence (“I, [name]
…”) and including the last sentence (“So help me God!”).

6. The appointee must then sign the Oath on the first dotted line and hold it up to the camera.
7. The Governor-General will then congratulate the appointee, after which the appointee should

mute their microphone.
 
 

3. Details for a pre-ceremony technical rehearsal
 
Date: Friday 2 July 2021
Time: 12:00pm (AEST)
Please use the webex link provided above to join the technical rehearsal.
 



All appointees or a representative are strongly encouraged to join this technical rehearsal. Please join
the rehearsal on the device that the appointee will be using for the actual ceremony to ensure any
issues can be resolved before the ceremony.
 
 

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
technical questions.  If you have not already done so, please provide a relevant mobile phone number
by return email to me (either for the Minister themselves or a staffer that will be with them) for

 to use in the unlikely event of any technical difficulties.
 
 

5. Actions after the ceremony
 
Following the ceremony, the signed Oath must be couriered to the Department of the Prime
Minister and Cabinet to arrange the Governor-General’s signature.
 
It is important the Oath is kept as pristine as possible. Please package the signed Oath in a protective
sleeve, preferably with cardboard and a “do not bend” instruction on the envelope. We would be
grateful if the Oath could be couriered ASAP.
 
Please address the package as follows:

Attention: 
Government Division
Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet
1 National Circuit
Barton, ACT, 2600

 
And finally, should you have any questions or require further assistance, please contact me on the
details below or at . Alternatively, please contact 

 
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
 
 






